
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, March 5, 2013 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    

 
6:00 pm Work Session 

 
7:00 pm Regular City Council Meeting 

 
 
 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
6:00PM COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 
1. Youth Substance Abuse Team 
2. Cedar Creek Trail Update 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT 

 
A. Approval of February 9, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Approval of February 19, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Eagle Scout Recognition 
B. TVFR State of the District Report by Chief Mike Duyck 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution 2013-009 Authorizing the City Manager to sign a leasing agreement with Auto 

Leasing Specialists for the leasing of police vehicles (Mark Daniel, Police Captain) 
 

B. Resolution 2013-010 Establishing the decision making structure and appointing the Local 

Trail Advisory Committee for the Cedar Creek Trail (Michelle Miller, Associate Planner) 
 

C. Resolution 2013-011 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the City of Sherwood and the City of Wilsonville regarding cost, 
construction, ownership, and operation of waterline segment 3b 
(Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director) 

 
8. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
10. ADJOURN  

  

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
March 5, 2013 

 
6:00pm Work Session 

 
7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 

 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
March 5, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council 
meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at 
Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to 
appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 1 of 10 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

City Council Work Session - Retreat 

Laurel Ridge Community Room, 21472 & 21416 SW Copper Terrace 

Sherwood, OR 97140 

February 9, 2013 

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 8:05 am. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Bill 
Butterfield, Robyn Folsom, Matt Langer, Krisanna Clark, and Dave Grant. 

 
3. OTHERS PRESENT: Sam Imperati with the Institute for Conflict Management and Dr. Ryan Hosley with 

Profinity Development. 
 
4. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Tom Pessemier Assistant City Manager, Craig Sheldon 

Public Works Director, Kristen Switzer Community Services Director, Jeff Groth Police Chief, Julia 
Hajduk Community Development Director, Craig Gibons Finance Director, Anna Lee Human Resource 
Manager, Colleen Resch Administrative Assistant and Sylvia Murphy City Recorder. 

  
5. BUSINESS TOPICS:  

 
A.  Meeting Purpose, Agenda Review, and Introductions. Joseph Gall welcomed the Council and 

staff to the City Council Work Session-Retreat. The purpose of the work session is to set goals for 
the year.  City Manager Gall reviewed the agenda and gave brief introductions. Councilor Butterfield 
asked the staff to introduce themselves and state the number of employees in their department and 
the number of direct reports. The staff responded and City Manager Gall informed the Council that 
Sam Imperati with the Institute for Conflict Management will be facilitating the work session and said 
Dr. Ryan Hosley has been invited to assist and follow up on Core Value Index (CVI) information. 
 

B. Setting the Stage.  Sam Imperati introduced himself, gave a brief background of his experience, 
and asked the Council to respond and briefly discuss the following questions. 

 
1) Hopes and Fears for Today’s Retreat?  
 
Council President Henderson responded that she hopes to determine concrete items we can 
accomplish and produce a document that can be reviewed. She commented, in the past, goal 
setting has been more about what was accomplished, not the future.  
 
Councilor Folsom responded that she is excited and views this work session as a chance to get 
things done. She stated we are a coordinated Council and we are on the same page with the Mayor 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 2 of 10 

and we will be able to focus on how we are going to get projects done, in a fiscally responsible 
manner.   
 
Councilor Langer responded that he hopes we can identify 2 or 3 goals and not get caught up on the 
minutia. 
 
Councilor Grant agreed with Councilor Langer and referenced the Community Center Project and 
hopes to move forward to get things accomplished and identify the next steps. 
 
Councilor Butterfield also agreed with Councilor Langer and stated that he hopes to use this session 
as quality time, to make good decisions, and get information from staff. 
 
Mayor Middleton commented regarding the need to consider finances in order to set realistic goals. 
 
Councilor Clark responded that she hopes to see action plans with concrete and identifiable items 
and hopes to use the CVI to more effectively communicate as a Council. 
 
Mr. Imperati informed the Council that Ryan Hosley would address the CVI work if questions arise, 
and posed the next question to the Councilors. 
 
2) What excites you about Sherwood over the next 12 months? 
 
Councilor Grant responded that he is excited about having a finger on the pulse of the water issue 
and knowing what is going on at the county level. 
 
Councilor Butterfield responded that he is excited about the good partnerships the City of Sherwood 
has, particularly with the Sherwood School District, and the youth in the community.   
 
Councilor Langer responded that he is excited about transportation funding, downtown streetscapes, 
and preserving the small town feel of Sherwood. 
 
Mayor Middleton responded that he is excited about the personal interactions he has had in the 
community, with the City Council and at City Hall. 
 
Councilor Clark responded that she is excited about the opportunities for small businesses with the 
economy improving, the Community Center, the possibility of a Parks and Recreation District, and 
solving issues with the YMCA.   
 
Councilor Henderson responded that she is excited about the old town development, the Community 
Center, the downtown streetscapes, new development, i.e. Langer and Kohls, and transportation. 
 
Councilor Folsom responded that she is excited about all of the above, the Cedar Creek Trail, the 
completion of projects, economic development, and partnerships with the community and 
businesses. 
 
Mr. Imperati posed the next question to the Councilors. 
 
3) Reflecting on your CVI, how will you best contribute as a Council member? 

 
Councilor Folsom reflected that her greatest asset is the friendly people in her life. 
 
Councilor Henderson agreed with Councilor Folsom and reflected that the CVI helps us understand 
the interests and passions of others and to be more respectful of different views. 
 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 3 of 10 

Councilor Clark responded that my CVI reveals that I want to move forward on issues, and that I 
bring balance. 
 
Mayor Middleton reflected that he is task oriented and stated this can also be his biggest flaw.   
 
Councilor Langer reflected that fairness is high on his radar every day. That is why he got involved 
with the City of Sherwood, because they operate fairly and he saw an opportunity to help. 
 
Councilor Butterfield reflected that he wants everyone to have a voice, make positive decisions and 
move forward. 
 
Councilor Grant agreed with Councilor Butterfield and stated he feels proud of the staff and their 
accomplishments. He said, we have always been productive and he wants to keep moving forward. 
 
Mr. Imperati stated that the Council had good insights and commonality and said there seems to be 
a consensus to get things done. He addressed the next agenda item. 
 

C.  Council Goal Setting 

1) Typical Structure:  Draft Mission, Vision, Values, Goals, Action Items, Implementation 
 
Mr. Imperati provided the Council and staff with a spreadsheet titled City of Sherwood 2013-2014 

Goal Setting Retreat (see record, Exhibit A) which was partially populated with the City’s 5 goals in 
the first column (Goals from 2012). Sam explained that the values and goals were listed in 
alphabetical order for the sake of argument. He also added a column for budget and explained the 
following columns: Objectives/Action Items/Projects, Division/Dept., Budget, and timelines. 

 
2) Purpose of Goal Setting Discussion: 

a) What it should and should not do? 

Mr. Imperati asked the Council if this document is more of a policy document or a 5 year plan.   

Mayor Middleton stated that if we put an item on the spreadsheet, i.e. Community Center, it should 
be handed to staff and get accomplished. 

Sam clarified that it would serve as a “Council to staff” communication document. 

Councilor Butterfield agreed with the Mayor that the due dates are important and projects need to be 
completed. 

Councilor Clark stated she saw the document as an action plan as opposed to a policy, a 
changeable plan document.  

b) Between Now and 6/30/14 vs. Five Year Strategic Plan 

Sam reminded the Council that this spreadsheet is not a 5 year plan. 

City Manager Gall noted that a 5 year plan is necessary, but he would like to do that next fiscal year. 
He would also like a 15 year community vision, and commented regarding this being a much larger 
task. He stated he would like to seek Council input on the importance of these issues in the future. 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 4 of 10 

Councilor Folsom said we have been looking into the future more and gave the example of PERS 
and asset depreciation, but agrees that a 5 year plan is necessary. She suggested we look at what 
the school district has done with their 2020 Plan. 

Councilor Butterfield agreed with Councilor Folsom, but cautioned that we have to walk before we 
can run. He encouraged the Council to start working on this spreadsheet with the staff.   

Mayor Middleton stated he would be in favor of a 5 year plan and gave examples of work at the 
county level and commented on how plans are useful when applying for grants. 

3) Discussion: Preferred Structure 

After reviewing the spreadsheet, Sam asked the Council if the format worked.   

Councilor Clark liked the due date column and agreed with the Mayor that staff should provide 
updates without having to be asked.  

City Manager Gall stated that the document will help staff prioritize their efforts, according to what 
the elected officials want. He stated he wants staff reports to indicate if the action is a Council goal.   

Councilor Henderson said this document will show the community what staff is working on and 
where tax dollars are being spent.   

Councilor Folsom felt the spreadsheet should be used and reviewed at work sessions to avoid 
repetition. She stated it could be useful as a priority list and would be helpful for liaisons.  

Break: Council took a break at 9:10 am and reconvened at 9:20 am. 

4) Mission 

Mr. Imperati recited the City’s mission statement as follows: “The City of Sherwood will provide 

services and infrastructure to support the highest quality of life for our residents, businesses, and 

visitors in a fiscally responsible manner”, and asked the Council for their thoughts.   

Councilor Grant recognized that Sherwood has moved towards quality and said quality isn’t cheap.   

Councilor Butterfield liked the mission statement. 

Councilor Henderson agreed that we strive for quality, but we do it in a fiscally responsible manner, 
such as the Stella Olsen Park bathrooms.   

Councilor Folsom noted it is a good succinct statement. 

Mayor Middleton agreed. 

Sam moved to the next agenda item and noted that all seemed to be in agreement with the Mission 
Statement. 

5) Values 

Mr. Imperati reminded the Council that values are how we do what we do. He recited the City’s 

values as: “Citizen Participation, Community Livability, Community Partnerships, Community Pride, 

Fiscal Responsibility and Quality Services”.  He asked the Council for their thoughts on the current 
values. 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 5 of 10 

Councilor Folsom noted that the values are covered and we need to avoid getting into the minutia of 
the details. 

City Manager Gall suggested that we add the word “transparency” to the values and said the word 
transparency is important to people and it should be written into the values. Councilor Butterfield 
asked Mr. Gall for his definition of transparency. City Manager Gall gave an example that some 
cities place their finances on their city website and this is where he wants Sherwood to be. Where 
citizens can see where the money is being spent. He stated that this will build trust. He also noted 
that we currently don’t broadcast our Council meetings live, we record them and play them on the 
website. He said transparency is a lot of little things, like opening up city hall, having neighborhood 
picnics, and building trust.   

Councilor Clark asked if Mr. Gall wanted to add the word to the list of values, or recommend some 
other language. 

City Manager Gall repeated that it was all about trust; the Council conceded that transparency is 
valued by all.  

Councilor Henderson mentioned that in order to be more transparent, we need to put more detailed 
information on the work session agendas, and suggested adding the words “transparent 

communication” to the list of values. 

Councilor Folsom suggested adding the word “transparency” because it covers everything. 

Sam reminded the Council that the other values consisted of 2 words.   

Councilor Butterfield suggested adding another word to “transparency”. 

City Manager Gall suggested “transparent government” and all agreed. 

Sam asked if the Council wanted the values ranked in order of importance or placed in alphabetical 
order. They all agreed to alphabetical order. 

6) Vision 

Sam reminded the Council that Sherwood does not have a Vision Statement and asked for thoughts.   

Councilor Langer stated that a vision should be worked on later and we don’t need it for today. 

Mayor Middleton said we don’t have time today and would rather move to goals. 

Sam noted that all Councilors agreed to move on and placing “Vision” on a list to do. 

7) Goals:  Eliminate, Edit or Add 

Mr. Imperati noted that the City has 5 goals, and they are as follows: “Economic Development, 

Infrastructure, Livability, Public Safety, and Resident Well Being”. Sam stated that a group needs to 
have a sufficient number of goals, but too many may not be viable. For instance, 3 to 7 goals are 
typical, and they need to have enough specificity to manage. Sam asked the Council if these goals 
needed editing. 

Councilor Butterfield asked which staff members are responsible for meeting which goals.  

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk said the goals affect all of us in our projects.  

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 6 of 10 

Public Works Director Craig Sheldon noted that 3 out of 5 goals are met in all projects. He said 
everything is tied to these goals.  

Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier said these goals are important to all of our projects, so we 
need to get them right.  

Human Resource Manager Anna Lee said we have to work as a team to meet these goals. 

Councilor Folsom stated that she feels the goals cover what we are doing in Sherwood. Discussion 
occurred concerning goals being identified in staff reports. 

Councilor Grant asked which staff primarily works with the goal, Economic Development. Tom 
Pessemier replied that was his department. 

Sam noted that the Council was in agreement to the 5 goals and asked if Council wanted to add to 
the list. 

Councilor Grant asked where growth falls into these goals. Discussion and examples were given of 
Brookman and Tonquin areas. 

Councilor Clark noted the previous discussion regarding broadcasting meetings live and financial 
transparency and wondered where these action items fit into our 5 goals. 

Councilor Henderson suggested adding a 6th goal “Citizen Communication”. Discussion occurred 
between the Council and Councilor Butterfield asked to hear from staff regarding the current goals.   

Community Services Director Kristen Switzer stated she feels we have them covered. 

Tom Pessemier suggested adding the concept of “sustainability”. 

Mayor Middleton suggested adding this language sometime in the future. Discussion followed 
regarding general perspective of sustainability and “being green” and the Council agreed that 
“sustainability” can be addressed in the future, possibly in the City Code and possibly having 
“sustainability” as a Value along with language of financial sustainability. City Manager Gall 
commented that we are already addressing sustainability and doing it. 

Councilor Henderson noted that we already have the word “responsible” in the language and asked 

staff how this is used in projects. Julia Hajduk said they look through a lens when considering all of 
these projects. Craig Sheldon added that the 5 goals already touch on sustainability.   

Sam asked if the language of Economic, Environmental and Social Interest was of interest to the 
Council. He also asked the Council to consider adding language to the Economic Development goal, 
such as short-term and long-term ramifications of projects. 

Councilor Butterfield stated too many goals would be challenging to accomplish. 

The Council discussed the goals further and decided that 5 goals were already challenging to 
accomplish.  

Sam noted that the Council agreed on the current goals and moved to the next agenda item. 

8) Next Steps:  Implementation  

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 7 of 10 

Mr. Imperati addressed the Objective/Action Items/Projects column and gave examples of items 
measurable and quantifiable. City Manager Gall noted that with time constraints he did not want to 
talk about routine items, but focus on new items. He suggested that defining “action items” is more 

important than objectives. He noted that defining objective is not a good idea, since we don’t have a 

5 year plan. The Council agreed to remove the language of “objectives” from this column. 

Sam suggested that the Council generate a list of action items that staff can use as homework. City 
Manager Gall asked Anna Lee to assist with listing the 9 action items on the white board, action 
items that he generated with input from Council members and staff. Mr. Gall asked for Council 
additions. Action items as follows: 

 Complete construction of the Community Center 
 Initiate an RFP process for City Attorney, by July 1, 2013. 
 Research and study feasibility of a Parks & Recreation District 
 Begin broadcasting City Council/Planning meetings live 
 Initiate neighborhood social events 
 Develop a Strategic/Business plan for City 
 Explore a Public Safety Advisory Board 
 Create Charter Review Committee 
 Study Fee Schedule 
 
After discussion between Council and staff, the following action items were added: 

 Drug-Dog 

 Asset depreciation, Facility/Equipment reserve fund 

 Water partnerships 

 Water Advisory Committee 

 Transportation plan 

 Update TSP/Transit plan 

 Selling City and URA properties 

 Community Center operations plan 
 

With staff feedback, the following items were listed. 

 Level of interest and support for annexations 

 Planning for growth 

 Future operations of Senior Center and all City facility operational plans 

 Langer Park HOA plan 
 

City Manager Gall asked if there were any items listed that are not supported. 
 
Councilor Butterfield noted that he does not support a Parks and Recreation District. He stated the City 
will lose control of the money and it will go into a big pool. 

Mayor Middleton stated he suggested this item for additional funding to support our parks. 

Councilor Grant expressed concern about drug dogs in schools. He stated we need to be cautious and 
did not want to offend the schools and endanger our partnership.   

Sam stated that this was a great start and this gives staff direction. He stated you need to recreate the 
spreadsheet (Exhibit A) and use it in a work session. 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 8 of 10 

Break: Council took a break at 10:55 am and reconvened at 11:00 am. 

D. Council Rules  

City Manager Gall asked the Council to look at the Council Rules (see record, Exhibit B) and reminded 
the Council that the rules were adopted by a Resolution in 2007 and said prior to that there were no 
Council Rules. He said there is a line item in the City Charter stating that we have to follow the Council 
Rules and stated the Council was not involved in crafting these rules; they were created by the City 
attorney. He said this is not a time to change the rules, but a brainstorm session to identify items for 
future work sessions.  Mr. Gall asked Mr. Imperati to go through the rules item by item and facilitate the 
discussion. 

1) Brainstorm/Identify Items for Future Discussion and Decision 

Sam referenced page 1 and asked for discussion. With no discussion, Sam and the Council 
addressed each rule. The following are sections where discussion occurred. 

On Section D-Agenda, Council President Henderson stated that Councilors do not have a way to 
add something to the agenda. Councilor Grant noted that we can only walk an item on and that is 
not being transparent. Mayor Middleton stated we need some order at the Council meetings and 
Councilors should bring their items to the weekly meetings or just tell City Manager Gall to add it to 
the agenda.  

Councilor Henderson referenced D.2 and commented that in the past the 9:30 pm rule has not been 
enforced. The Mayor agreed that this needs to be enforced. Sam reminded the Council to just 
identify the issues in a sentence or two.  

On Section I-Communication with Staff, paragraph b, Councilor Butterfield stated that the language 
concerning the award of contracts and picking consultants is too limited.  He stated he would like to 
be able to use his professional experience to inform staff. City Manager Gall agreed to look at 
alternative language. 

On Section K-Adjournment, Councilor Henderson inquired about breaks. Mayor Middleton 
suggested Council simply ask. 

On Section L-Bias and Disqualification, Councilor Henderson asked City Manager Gall if he is 
actively following the rules concerning recusal. He stated that he will remind the Council, but it is 
ultimately the Councilors call. Sam advised that when in doubt, recuse yourself.   

On Section O-Legal Advice, Councilor Henderson asked if the staff helps support a Councilor if they 
receive an ethics complaint. The City Recorder stated that the City does not receive information from 
the Ethics Commission when a complaint is directed to an individual, it is sent directly to that person. 

On Section Q-Committees, Organizations and Media, Councilor Grant stated he felt that liaisons 
should be chosen by all the Councilors and not specifically the Mayor’s decision. Brief discussion 
occurred regarding transparency.  

City Manager Gall asked if the Council felt anything was missing from the rules. Mayor Middleton 
commented that the rules needed to be trimmed down as a lot of the rules are common sense. 

E. Council Liaisons Discussion 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 9 of 10 

City Manager Gall referenced the 2013 Council Members Board/Commission Liaison Assignments 
(see record, Exhibit C). Mayor Middleton discussed the liaison assignments and explained that due to 
the fact that meetings were taking place before this retreat, he decided to make these assignments. 
He said he had a few requests from Councilors, but would like to discuss the assignments with the 
entire Council. Discussion occurred concerning term limits for Board and Commission member. 
Discussion occurred regarding term limits for Council liaison assignments. Councilor Grant stated that 
liaison positions should not be term limited. Councilor Folsom agreed, but suggested a discussion as 
to whether Councilors want new liaison positions. 

City Manager Gall asked if there are any changes to the proposed list. 

Community Services Director Kristen Switzer asked if any Councilors would like to serve as a liaison 
to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and said she is currently the alternate, and we need 
a primary liaison and informed the Council that other participating jurisdictions have an elected official 
as the primary. 

After brief discussion of meeting schedule, responsibilities and meeting format, Councilor Henderson 
accepted the position. 

Councilor Grant stated he liked continuity and expressed concern with the changes and supports 
placing Councilor Butterfield on Parks & Recreation Board and Councilor Langer on SURPAC. 

Councilor Clark stated that she likes change and said it is important to meet with other groups so we 
don’t get stale. She stated it’s an opportunity to get exposed to different parts of the community. 

Mr. Imperati commented regarding the balance between longevity and change and this being a 
philosophical discussion and inquired if the assignments were going to be rearranged at this time. 

Mayor Middleton stated that we work for the public and we have to make some changes for the good 
of the community and commented regarding longevity on a committee and becoming stagnated. 

City Manager Gall reminded the Councilors that future Mayors often come from City Councilor 
positions and it is good to be well rounded in all committees. 

Councilor Clark stated that the Mayor did a good job considering liaison assignments. 

Mr. Imperati inquired as to what the Council was trying to achieve with the list. 

Councilor Grant asked to be reassigned to the Budget Committee. Discussion followed regarding the 
Council already being part of the Budget Committee as a whole and a liaison not being necessary. 
Councilor Grant explained one of the roles of the liaison is to review applications for the citizen 
members and participate in this recommendation as well being the point person for questions. He 
requested to be removed as the alternate to SURPAC and replaced with Councilor Langer. Councilor 
Clark would remain as primary. 

Councilor Folsom asked to be assigned to the Historical Society, this assignment was original 
unfilled. 

Councilor Butterfield asked to be assigned to the alternate to Planning Commission. 

Mayor Middleton asked to remove Councilor Henderson as Planning Commission alternate and 
replace her with Councilor Butterfield.  

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 9, 2013 
Page 10 of 10 

Councilor Henderson agreed and asked to be assigned as the alternate to Regional Water Providers. 

Councilor Clark asked Councilor Langer if he would like to continue working with both the Chamber 
and the Main Street group, or just focus on Main Street. 

Councilor Langer responded that he liked the way it is set up now, because it is helpful to see both 
sides. 

City Manager Gall asked whether we need to adopt a resolution stating the changes.   

Mayor Middleton stated he did not feel that was necessary, the Council agreed. 

F. Wrap Up:  Reflections on Retreat and Next Steps  

Sam asked Ryan Hosley for his observation of the work session. Ryan noted that everyone respected 
each other and he did not need to step in. He also offered to continue to be a resource for the City of 
Sherwood.  

Councilor Butterfield asked Mr. Hosley if everyone performed to their CVI. Ryan explained the value 
of the CVI is to recognize and respect each other.  

Councilor Henderson asked what the next steps are and what the staff planned on doing with the list 
of action items. Will the Council see it again, and in what form? 

City Manager Gall said the leadership team with populate the spreadsheet and bring it to a Council 
work session for further discussion and stated it is important because it also affects the budget 
process. 

City Manager Gall thanked everyone for attending the retreat. 

3. ADJOURN  

Mayor Middleton adjourned the meeting at 12:00 pm. 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor   

12



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 8 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

February 19, 2013 

 
 

WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Bill Middleton called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Dave 
Grant, Robyn Folsom and Matt Langer. Councilor Bill Butterfield arrived at 5:37pm and Krisanna 
Clark arrived at 5:45pm. 

 
3. STAFF PRESENT: Tom Pessemier Assistant City Manager, Craig Sheldon Public Works Director, 

Kristen Switzer Community Services Director, Mark Daniel Police Captain, Julia Hajduk Community 
Development Director, Craig Gibons Finance Director, Bob Galati City Engineer, Michelle Miller 
Associate Planner, Colleen Resch Administrative Assistant and Sylvia Murphy City Recorder. 

 
4. TOPICS DISCUSSED: 

 

A. Tonquin Trail: Michelle Miller, Associate Planner presented information (see record, Exhibit A) 
and briefed the Council on: Vision and Planning Process, recommended trail routes and 
recommended trail design and implementation. Michelle briefed the Council on the regional trail 
network, study area, project steering committee and community participation. Discussion followed 
regarding cost to the City, maintenance and maintenance costs, maintenance responsibilities of 
city and county. 
 

5. ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Middleton adjourned the Council work session at 5:45 pm and convened to a URA Board of 
Directors work session (see URA Board records). 
 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Bill Middleton called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
3. ROLL CALL: 

 

13



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 2 of 8 

4. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Dave 
Grant, Robyn Folsom, Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer and Krisanna Clark. 

 
5. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT:  City Manager Joseph Gall, Tom Pessemier Assistant 

City Manager, Craig Sheldon Public Works Director, Craig Gibons Finance Director, Community 
Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Captain Mark Daniel, Community Services Director 
Kristen Switzer, Associate Planner Michelle Miller, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Chris Crean. 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion. 
 

6. CONSENT: 

 

A. Approval of February 5, 2013 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2013-004 Appointing Budget Officer for FY13-14 

C. Resolution 2013-005 Reappointing Tim Carkin to the Budget Committee 
 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT 

AGENDA, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7. PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A. Eagle Scout Recognition 
 
The Council recognized Olsen Cottle for receiving his Eagle Award and asked Olsen to give a 
description of the project that earned him the award. Olsen explained his project consisted of 
removing trash from the Tualatin River by maneuvering on canoes. Council asked why he selected 
this project, Olsen replied he was good in canoeing and has a friend that supplied 14 canoes and a 
trailer. He stated the trash was hauled to the Newberg landfill and they hauled a full trailer load. He 
was asked what agencies he coordinated with to complete his project, he replied Clean Water 
Services (CWS) and the City of Tualatin. Mayor Middleton thanked Olsen for his service and 
presented him with a Certificate of Achievement.  
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

8. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

No comments were received. 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2013-006 authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement for provisions of grounds-keeping services 
 

14



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 3 of 8 

Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director recapped the staff report and informed the Council the 
agreement is with the School District to take over maintenance of the school grounds, including hard 
scape and parking lots. Craig stated the City currently has an IGA with the District to maintain ball 
fields and this would be a separate IGA. Craig stated this agreement is up to $120,000 worth of 
services with $60,000 of purchasing equipment from the district through personnel services over a 
three year period. Craig stated this would be at $20,000 per year. Craig informed the Council we 
have efficiencies here as the city purchases the same equipment and we conduct the same training 
for staff. Craig said the district had an employee retire in November 2012 and this agreement is a 
result of that retirement.   
 
Mayor Middleton asked for questions from the Council. 
 
Councilor Folsom thanked Craig for his work on this agreement and said she appreciates the 
equipment will be purchased with personnel services over three years, so it doesn’t cost the City any 
out-of-pocket cash, and we are also helping the district. Councilor Folsom thanked City Manager Gall 
and Superintendent Cordie, and said as a citizen she appreciates seeing these economies to scale 
and efficiencies happen. 
 
Mayor Middleton asked the Council if they were in agreement to receiving public comments on the 
resolution, Council conceded. Mayor Middleton asked to receive public comments, none were 
received. 
 
Mayor Middleton asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KRISANNA CLARK TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-006, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED 

IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
B. Resolution  2013-007 Authorizing the City Manager to award a contract to replace the 

artificial turf at Snyder Park Soccer Field 
 
Public Works Director Craig Sheldon recapped the staff report and stated that the turf field was built 
in 2001 and is in need of repair and was supposed to last 8 to 10 years depending on usage. He 
stated the Council approved a supplemental budget last year and staff had an opportunity to look at a 
few options and said the option we are proposing tonight is to go through the Association of 
Education Purchasing Agency. Craig stated they went through a bidding process that went through 
24 states including Oregon. Craig said this will go through the Inter Mountain Educational Service 
District in Oregon, located in Umatilla. Craig explained prior examples of purchasing using a similar 
process. Craig stated this was an actual bid that was done in August of 2011, along with mailing of 
bid notices. He stated in September there was a pre-bid meeting and in October bid submittals were 
due and the public opening occurred. In November 2011 approval of bids occurred and in December 
bidders were advised of results, and in March 2012 the contract was in place. Craig stated the 
contract is a two year contract. Craig informed the Council that cost estimates and negotiating has 
not occurred yet and said it’s a rough estimate of $390,000 for the replacement turf and stripped for 
lacrosse. Craig provided an example of a local project sole sourced for $434,000, which is a savings 
of $45,000. Craig informed the Council of potential issues that could arise once the turf is lifted and 

15



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 4 of 8 

the cost potentially increasing to $500,000. He stated he planned to have a compaction test done in 
the next few weeks and that is when staff would negotiate with Field Turf to determine what needs to 
be done.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked for Council questions. 
 
Councilor Folsom stated the life expectancy is 8-10 years and asked if the life expectancy of the new 
turf would be the same. 
 
Craig replied that it will depend on the warranty, based on what we find underneath the current turf. 
He said Field Turf could not warranty with the other agency depending on what was put in. He said 
this will be part of the negotiating. Craig informed the Council that Field Turf installed the field at the 
High School and said this has been a good field and they have done our infields over the past years. 
Craig stated they are local and have come out on their own time to look at the fields.  
 
Councilor Folsom reminded the Council that the turf replacement required a supplemental budget 
and asked Finance Director Craig Gibons and City Manager Gall how we are going to handle turf 
replacement in the future.     
 
Craig Gibons replied that we will present the Council with budgets that will have a $50,000 
contribution to a replacement reserve for turf replacement, for 10 years, totaling $500,000. 
 
With no other questions, Mayor Middleton asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-007, 

SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT LINDA HENDERSON, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

C. Resolution 2013-008 Acknowledging the Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan as a  reference 
document for decision making purposes 

 

Michelle Miller Associate Planner came forward along with Brian Stecher. Michelle introduced Brian 
as a member of the Parks Board and said he was the citizen representative on the Steering 
Committee for the Ice Age Tonquin Trail process. 
 
Michelle presented a power point (see record, Exhibit B) and stated this was discussed this evening 
in the Council work session and her presentation will be a brief overview for the public. Michelle 
stated she would review the vision and planning process, the recommended trail route, trail design 
and implementation. Michelle reminded the Council that this is a guide and gives us the formula we 
need as we move forward with implementing the trail and determining the location of the trail specific 
to Sherwood. Michelle stated a lot of the decisions are yet to be made as we move forward with our 
Cedar Creek Trail process and this gives us a good overview of how we will proceed in the future.  

Michelle stated the Ice Age Trail will start at Boones Ferry and end at the Tualatin River National 
Wildlife Refuge in Sherwood, and will be part of a Regional Trail Network. Michelle referenced the 
exhibit and maps indicating trails, and said some trails have been completed and others have not and 

16



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 5 of 8 

stated hopefully one day we can connect the Willamette River with the Columbia River through a 
multiuse trail. Michelle referenced the exhibit and explained the study area. Michelle explained the 
makeup of the Project Steering Committee and said this was a unique process, which included 
Clackamas County, Washington County, Clean Water Services and Washington County Bicycle 
Advocate Hal Ballard. Michelle explained the extensive community involvement process, which 
included open houses, community events, mailers and news articles.  

Michelle referenced the maps in the exhibit showing the proposed recommended trail. She explained 
the trail facilities and shared paths, off trail components as well as trailheads, way findings and 
signage. 

Michelle stated the adoption of the resolution will provide a blueprint for future trail development 
through grants and private developments. She stated it will help with the transportation system plan 
update in the future as well as be a part of the regional trail network. Michelle stated it will also 
supports other trail planning efforts in other communities as they development their trail segments.  

Michelle offered to answer questions and asked Brian to share his experience on the Steering 
Committee. Brian stated his job as the citizen representative, as he understands it, was to report 
back to the Parks Board on a monthly basis on the progress of this project over the last 2 ½ years, 
and be available at public meetings. 

  
Mayor Middleton asked the Council if they were in agreement to receiving public comments on the 
resolution, Council conceded.  
 
Mayor Mays asked to receive comments. 
 
Wendy Kellington, an attorney representing Tonquin Industrial Group, which includes industrial 
owners and operators in the Tualatin area, in the Southwest Concept Plan area, representing 50 
family wage jobs. Ms. Kellington stated they are listed in the letter she has submitted for the record, 
(see record, Exhibit C). 
 
Ms. Kellington stated the Tonquin Industrial Group has been participating in this process for a long 
time with Metro and the City of Tualatin on the project and said they have submitted comments on 
January 9th to Metro outlining serious concerns of the group. She stated the Tonquin Industrial Group 
is located in a regionally significant industrial area within the UGB, not yet annexed to the City of 
Tualatin. She stated it’s a highly developed area with heavy freight trucking, equipment, and a 

proposed rail spur and said the trail in this area is proposed to go through the Tonquin Industrial area 
along the railroad tracks in a way that we are very concerned as it is unsafe and would adversely 
impact freight mobility in this area. She stated there is no Ice Age phenomenon in the regional 
significant industrial area, but there are some Ice Age caulks to the North, outside of the area. 
 
Ms. Kellington stated we have asked that the alignment through the regionally significant industrial 
area be removed and it has not been removed and are here tonight asking you not to adopt, accept 
or rely on this document until such time as the regionally significant industrial area that we represent 
are adequately protected. She stated we care and have significant concerns about the tremendous 
usage you’ve seen in the Metro numbers of the Grahams Ferry segment of this trail, 600-700 people 
per day using the trail, conflicting with heavy truck movement and rail movement, and said we have 
safety concerns. She mentioned concerns over 50 family wage jobs and land use restrictions. Ms. 
Kellington referenced page 3 of her letter and stated she quotes language from the plan that this is a 

17



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 6 of 8 

serious document and not just a concept that can change, it’s a serious roadmap for what will happen 

with respect to subsequent plans and TSP’s for the City, Washington County and others. She 

referenced quoted language from page 4, stating, “project partners need to work close with 

Washington County to be sure trail design is a component of these projects and that trail right of way 
is preserved for future development in the areas where they are listed”. Ms. Kellington stated there 
are reasons to do it, for good policy as well as legal reasons. She stated this is in a regional 
significant industrial area that the Metro functional plan says you are not supposed to have public 
parks in those areas, and referenced page 6 that indicates this. Ms. Kellington stated as we strongly 
support citizen access to the Ice Age phenomenon, we are very concerned about 50 family wage 
jobs, the regionally significant industrial area and feel it’s premature to be pushing this through on this 

important issue. Ms. Kellington requested the Council not accept the plan until the issue is resolved 
and doesn’t see the urgency until issues are resolved.  
 
Mayor Middleton thanked Ms. Kellington and asked for Council questions. 
 
Councilor Butterfield asked staff what section of the trail, shown on the map, Ms. Kellington was 
referencing. Michelle Miller replied she is not certain as this is the first she has heard. Ms. Kellington 
directed staff to the area in question as Map #12. Michelle stated Ms. Kellington referenced the 
basalt study area and confirmed it was the SW Tualatin Concept Plan. Michelle stated the maps 
reference footnotes and said there are still questions on how the alignment will actually work and said 
Metro has a willing seller program and any type of easements would have to be under what they 
would want to do. Michelle stated in looking at Title 6, this is also a Metro document and plan and all 
of these will have to be coalesced when referencing this section. 
 
Councilor Clark asked if this section was in our decision making area. Michelle replied it is not and 
confirmed it is in Washington County jurisdiction. Councilor Clark confirmed Michelle previously 
stated she had not heard of this dispute before. Michelle replied, not specifically. Brian Stecher 
replied he had not heard either. 
 
Councilor Folsom asked Brian for confirmation, and stated in his meetings, he had not heard of this 
concern being brought to the attention of the Steering Committee, Brian replied that was correct.  
 
Councilor Folsom stated what staff is asking of the Council is to bless a concept plan that is still in a 
state of flux. Michelle replied it is a master plan document that has guidelines and a general 
alignment for all jurisdictions to say they will be supportive of their decision making as they develop 
their alignments in this general vicinity. Michelle stated we can only guide what’s in our jurisdictional 

bounds and how our trail develops, and we will look at this document as we plan our trail segments 
and use it as a guideline as to where we can go for resources, grants and will be a ball park for 
certain things and a ball park for costs and a ball park of what it will look like, and we have agreed 
that we will be supportive of one another’s jurisdictions as they develop their sections. 
 
Councilor Folsom stated if we passed or did not pass this resolution, it would likely not impact what 
Washington County does. Michelle replied that is correct and said it will show we are supportive of 
this trail and the work that has been done on the master plan document.  
 
Councilor Folsom stated, to confirm with staff, and referenced page 75 and said there are ways to 
address the concerns of this group and have their concerns mitigated and this is not in our purview. 
Michelle replied that was correct and we will not be a part of that.  

18



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 7 of 8 

 
With no other Council questions or comments, the following motion was received. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-

008, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KRISANNA CLARK, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 

City Manager Gall informed the Council that staff has been meeting with PGE to negotiate a new 
franchise agreement and the agreement is currently under review by the city attorney. Mr. Gall stated 
PGE has been negotiating a lot of franchise throughout the region and with our attorney representing 
other jurisdictions on this he hopes it will be an expeditious process. Mr. Gall stated he is looking to 
complete the work before the end of this fiscal year and have something back to the Council by July 
1st. 
 
City Manager Gall said the City is negotiating a 10 year agreement and PGE has asked for a 20 year 
agreement.  
 
Mr. Gall informed the Council of a recent tour he and staff took of the Durham Waste Water 
Treatment Facility and offered that the Council members, staff and planning commissioners take a 
tour. Mr. Gall said the Council will see an invitation sometime this summer. 
 
Mr. Gall informed the Council similarly to introducing new staff in his City Manager report, he wanted 
to inform the Council of the resignation of the City’s Human Resource Manager, Anna Lee. He stated 

Anna’s last day will be Friday of next week and she will be leaving to take a position with Metro after 
8 ½ years of working at the City. He stated anytime a position opens up it gives us an opportunity to 
rethink how we do things and said the senior management team has been discussing how to do HR 
and not necessarily doing it as it has been done in the past. He asked for Council input on this in the 
coming weeks as he figures out how to fill the need.  
 
Council President Henderson asked for an update on the downtown street project. 
 
Tom Pessemier replied that the project is profiting from nice weather and they have been able to get 
in and work on the utilities. He said they have compacted the rock on Railroad between Pine St. and 
Washington St. today and plan to compact the section between Washington St. and Main St. 
tomorrow. 
 
He informed the Council that he visited four businesses today and two of the businesses said they 
are doing better business than they ever have and the other two have not been impacted. He stated 
he believes this shows that the contractor is doing a good job and shared an example of the 
contractor visiting with a business to talk about a constructability issue and making sure the owner 
was aware of the measures the contractor was taking to protect that business. He said the project is 
going well and is a bit ahead of schedule.  

 

19



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
February 19, 2013 
Page 8 of 8 

Councilor Grant stated staff should be commended for all the signage pertaining to the businesses 
being open and said he was very impressed and believes this is part of the success of the 
businesses. 
 
Councilor Henderson commented regarding hearing comments from pedestrians and business 
owners on the cleanliness and courtesy of the construction company. 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 

11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

Councilor Clark reported Sherwood Old Town Main Street Association meets every Wednesday at 
11am at the Rebekah Lodge to provide updates on the construction and how it’s progressing and 

said anyone can attend. She said the Sherwood Chamber will be hosting an event at the Sherwood 
Police Facility community room next Tuesday from 6:15pm to 7:15pm with Representative John 
Davis, Senator Larry George and Representative Thatcher. Ms. Clark stated it should be very 
informational on what is happening within the district and outside Sherwood and said the Chamber is 
encouraging everyone to come. 
 
Councilor Folsom commented she received from a group of citizens a document on branding of Old 
Town and asked the City Recorder to distribute the document to the Council. Ms. Folsom thanked the 
group for taking an interest and said they are either long time or lifelong residents whom recently 
visited Leavenworth, Washington. Ms. Folsom said they put together a document with thoughts and 
ideas for Sherwood.  
 
Councilor Butterfield reported he is the newly appointed Council Liaison to the Sherwood School 
Board and stated he had a nice conversation with Superintendent Heather Cordie and she was 
excited about the City getting more involved. Councilor Butterfield said the district will be adding to 
their School Board Agenda a section for Mr. Butterfield to provide a regular report. 
 
Mayor Middleton commented regarding reading positive comments from Superintendent Cordie in 
her weekly update. 
 
With no other announcements, Mayor Middleton adjourned. 

 

12. ADJOURN: 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:42 pm. 
 
 

 

Submitted by: 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 

20



 

Resolution 2013-009, Staff Report 
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: March 5, 2013 
 

 Agenda Item: New Business 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
 
FROM: Mark Daniel, Police Captain 
Through: Jeff Groth, Police Chief, Joseph Gall, City Manager and Paul Elsner, City Attorney 
 
 
SUBJECT:     RESOLUTION 2013-009 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A 
LEASING AGREEMENT WITH AUTO LEASING SPECIALISTS FOR THE LEASING OF POLICE 
VEHICLES 
 

 
 
Issue: The City is seeking to continue leasing police vehicles from an established vendor, Wire 
Works, through the State of Oregon bid. The financing arm of this vendor is Auto Leasing 
Specialists. Authority to sign previous leases was provided to both previous City Manager Jim 
Patterson and City Manager Pro-Tem Tom Pessemier. The same authority needs to be granted to 
City Manager Joseph Gall, so he can sign new leasing agreements. 
 
Background: In keeping with the City Council goal of fiscal responsibility and in an effort to save 
up-front budgeting costs, police staff has looked at several various options of procuring police 
vehicles, including leasing them from Auto Leasing Specialists. Signing the lease agreements 
would allow staff to continue the practice of procuring police vehicles from Auto Leasing Specialists 
on a lease-to-own program. 
 
The leasing agreement has been reviewed and approved by legal counsel. 
 

Financial Impact: This lease option fits within current budgeted allowances. 
 
Recommendation: Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2013-009. 

21



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-009 
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-009 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A LEASING AGREEMENT 
WITH AUTO LEASING SPECIALISTS FOR THE LEASING OF POLICE VEHICLES 
 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing body of the City of Sherwood, Oregon having been 
presented with information about the need for additional options for the procurement of police 
vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council hereby resolves that Auto Leasing Specialists provides 
a viable option for the procurement of police vehicles through an established vendor and 
thereby authorizes the City Manager to sign any and all necessary leasing agreements with 
Auto Leasing Specialists for the procurement of police vehicles. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to sign a lease agreement with Auto Leasing 
Specialists. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 5th day of March 2013. 
 
 
 
             
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

22



 

Resolution 2013-010, Staff Report 
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 Council Meeting Date:  March 5, 2013 
 

 Agenda Item: New Business  
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Michelle Miller, AICP, Associate Planner 
THROUGH:  Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director and Joseph Gall, City Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Resolution 2013-010 - Resolution Establishing the Committee Structure and Appointing 

the Local Trail Advisory Committee for the Cedar Creek Trail 
 
ISSUE:  Should the City establish the Cedar Creek Trail committee structure including the Trail Local 
Trail Advisory Committee and appoint its membership as recommended by the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board? 
  

BACKGROUND:  In 2012, the City of Sherwood received an award of federal Regional Flexible 
Funds for design and construction of the Cedar Creek Trail. Last fall, staff met with Council to discuss 
the proposed project approach for the Cedar Creek Trail and the decision-making structure for the 
project. It was agreed that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board would assist the Council in the 
decision-making process in the capacity as the primary advisory board for the project, serving as the 
Cedar Creek Trail Implementation Committee. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board would be 
advised by the project management team comprised of staff and consultants, a technical advisory 
committee comprised of local agencies and cities, and a local advisory committee comprised of 
interested citizens. 
 
In order to encourage public and neighborhood involvement for the project and address specific 
concerns of the property owners and residents living near the proposed Cedar Creek Trail, a Local 
Trail Advisory Committee (LTAC) was proposed to be formed to provide recommendations to the 
decision-makers about neighborhood issues as the final trail alignment is developed within the Cedar 
Creek corridor. 
 
To solicit membership, staff sent out invitations to all property owners residing near or adjacent to the 
proposed location of the trail to attend a meeting to learn more about the project and determine 
interest in serving on the LTAC. It is determined that the LTAC be comprised of members who live 
near the project area, have a particular interest in the trail or a certain area of expertise in the 
development of the trail.  Interested members were asked to fill out a questionnaire and attend a 
recent Parks and Recreation Advisory Board meeting. The Board reviewed the questionnaires and 
met with some of the applicants in order to select the members recommended through this resolution. 
The LTAC applicants understand and have committed to meet approximately 4 to 5 times during the 
year to advise the Board on some of the issues directly related to the impact of the trail on the various 
neighborhoods as the alignment for the trail is refined. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2013-010. 

23



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-010 
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-010 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE DECISION MAKING STRUCTURE AND APPOINTING 
THE LOCAL TRAIL ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR THE CEDAR CREEK TRAIL 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood received a Regional Flexible Fund Grant to plan, design and 
construct the Cedar Creek Trail; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to encourage public and neighborhood involvement for the 
project that is representative of the community as a whole and provides an opportunity to address 
specific concerns of the property owners and residents living near the proposed Cedar Creek Trail; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the most efficient structure to ensure public input is to 
establish a: 

 
 Local Trail Advisory Committee (LTAC) comprised of citizens and property owners that are 

interested in the location and design of the Cedar Creek Trail, 
 
 Technical Trail Advisory Committee (TTAC) comprised of agency representatives with 

technical expertise in their area of interest,  
 
 Implementation Committee charged with taking recommendations from the TTAC and  

LTAC to provide direction on specific elements and alignment of the Cedar Creek Trail; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommended committee members to serve 
on the LTAC from the various neighborhoods along the proposed trail routes, citizens that showed 
interest in the project, or had certain area of expertise in the development of the trail. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. A Local Trail Advisory Committee (LTAC) is established.  The LTAC shall be comprised 
of up to nine citizens representing the local interests of those living near the Cedar Creek corridor. 
The LTAC shall include the following members: 

 John Clifford,  
 Naomi Belor 
 Marion Gardner 
 Charles Balleuti 
 Kevin Davis 
 Ken Wheeler 
 Wade Anderson 
 Josh Flosi 
 Rick Woidyla 
 

24



DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-010 
March 5, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

Section 2. A Technical Trail Advisory Committee is established.  The TTAC shall be comprised 
of agency-designated representatives to ensure that the Cedar Creek Trail project 
adequately considers the needs of the respective interests, and may coordinate and include 
the following agencies and organizations in the membership: 

 Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) 
 Washington County 
 Metro 
 City of Tigard 
 City of Tualatin 
 City of Wilsonville 
 Clean Water Services 
 City of Sherwood Departments 
 Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife 
 Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 
 Sherwood School District 
 YMCA 
 Active Transportation Advocacy organizations 
 

 
Section 3. A Cedar Creek Trail Implementation Committee is established to review materials 
and recommendations from the TTAC, LTAC and the project management group to provide 
direction on specific elements of the plan and develop a final recommendation to the City Council 
for consideration. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is designated as the Cedar Creek 
Trail Implementation Committee. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 5th day of March 2013. 
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 
 

25



 

 
Resolution 2013-011, Staff Report 
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date:  March 5, 2013 
 

Agenda Item:  New Business 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, City Manager and Christopher Crean, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2013-11 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER 
INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND THE 
CITY OF WILSONVILLE REGARDING COST, CONSTRUCTION, OWNERSHIP, AND OPERATION OF 
WATERLINE SEGMENT 3B  
 

 
Issue: Should the City approve Resolution 2013-011 authorizing City Manager to enter into an IGA with 
the City of Wilsonville to construct waterline Segment 3B. 
 
Background: Since 2006, the City of Sherwood has constructed Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the 48-inch 
water transmission pipeline from Sherwood to Wilsonville. 
 
The City has constructed segments 6 through 9 of the pipeline, and has 100% ownership interest in this 
portion of the pipeline. Sherwood partnered with the City of Wilsonville for segments 2, 3A, 4, 5 and the 
Meter Vault, with joint interest in these segments of the pipeline. Segment 1 of the pipeline was 
purchased by the City of Sherwood from Tualatin Valley Water District for undivided interest in the 
Willamette River Treatment Plant. 
 
This is the last segment of the pipeline. This project was broken into two IGAs: the first IGA was for 
design, permitting, easement acquisition, environmental permitting and the second IGA is to construct. 
Segment 3B consists of approximately 2,400 feet of 48-inch transmission line that will connect Segment 
3A and Segment 4 of the project together.  
 
Constructing this final segment of pipeline will complete the water transmission pipeline from the 
Willamette River Treatment Plant to the City of Sherwood. The City will have 50% ownership interest in 
this final segment of pipeline. 
 
Financial Impact: The City of Sherwood has budgeted $4 million for this project and at this phase in 
design, we estimate total construction costs for Segment 3B to be $3,497,000.00 plus 5% contingency 
($174,850.00) for a total amount of $3,671,850.00. 
 
The City of Sherwood is up-fronting the cost for construction of Segment 3B.  The City of Wilsonville will 
reimburse their portion of the project within 180 days of substantial completion. The cost sharing 
methodology is that Sherwood will be responsible for 46.2% and Wilsonville will be responsible for 53.8% 
of construction costs. 
 
Findings: Sherwood agrees to upfront construction costs to complete the last section of the transmission 
pipeline project that will allow the City of Sherwood to draw its ownership interest from the treatment 
plant with the City of Wilsonville reimbursing Sherwood its percentage. 
 
Recommendation: Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2013-011.  

26



DRAFT 
 

Resolution 2013-011 
March 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (21 Pages) 
 

 

 
RESOLUTION 2013-011 

 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE 
REGARDING COST, CONSTRUCTION, OWNERSHIP, AND OPERATION OF WATERLINE 
SEGMENT 3B  
 
WHEREAS, it has been recognized and agreed by the parties that the jointly owned 
transmission line between the plant and the meter vault will not be complete until the last 
approximate 2,400 feet of 48-inch transmission line (Segment 3) is completed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the parties have authority to enter into this agreement pursuant to their applicable 
charters, principle acts, and ORS 190.003 – 190.030; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is recognized by the parties that it is necessary to enter into this 
intergovernmental cooperative agreement through ORS Chapter 190 to accomplish the 
objectives. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to enter in to an Intergovernmental Agreement, 
attached as Exhibit A, between the City of Sherwood and the City of Wilsonville regarding cost, 
construction, ownership, and operation of Segment 3B of a 48-inch diameter water transmission 
line from the terminus of Segment 3A and Kinsman Road to the beginning point of Segment 4 
near the intersection of the proposed, as yet to be completed, Segment of Kinsman Road and 
Boeckman Road, the length of approximately 2,400 feet. 
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 5th day of March 2013.  
 

 
______________________ 

        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
Attest:         
 
 
        
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder   

27



AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD
AND THE CITY OF \ryILSONVILLE REGARDING COST, CONSTRUCTION,

OWNERSHIP, AND OPERATION OF SEGMENT 3B OF A 48.INCH DIAMETER
WATER TRANSMISSION LINE FROM THE TERMINUS OF SEGMENT 3A IN
KINSMAN ROAD TO THE BEGINNING POINT OF SEGMENT 4 NEAR THE

INTERSECTION OF THE PROPOSED, AS YET TO BE COMPLETED, SEGMENT OF
KINSMAN ROAD AND BOECKMAN ROAD, A LENGTH OF

APPROXIMATELY 2,400 FEET

This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this _ day of
2013, by and between the City of Sherwood, an Oregon municipal corporation ("Sherwood"),

and the City of Wilsonville, an Oregon municipal corporation ("Wilsonville"), referred to

collectively as ("the Parties").

RECITALS

The Parties agree upon the following Recitals

A. WHEREAS, originally Tualatin Valley Water District ("TVWD") and

Wilsonville partnered to construct and own undivided shares in the Willamette River Water

Treatment Plant ("V/RWTP") and appurtenances thereto from the raw water intake in the

Willamette River through Segment 1 of the finished water 63-inch water transmission line

("Supply Facilities"). The treatment plant portion of the V/R'WTP has a current designed

capacity of 15 mgd. Subsequently, based on certain conditions, Wilsonville consented to

Sherwood purchasing certain interests in the WRWTP Supply Facilities from TVWD, which

included the purchase of TVWD's 1/3 of the 15 mgd capacity (i.e., 5 mgd), while V/ilsonville

retained the remaining2l3 of the 15 mgd capacity (i.e., 10 mgd), of the V/RWTP capacity. In

addition, Wilsonville and TVV/D own larger capacity interests in other appurtenant facilities.

B. WHEREAS, Sherwood and Wilsonville entered into agreements whereby

Wilsonville had constructed or would construct, and Sherwood would purchase capacity in,

Segments 2, 3A, 4, and 5A of 48-inch diameter water transmission lines within Wilsonville,

which in conjunction with the V/RWTP and other facilities will jointly serve both cities with a

permanent potable water supply. All these segments are now constructed and capacity purchased

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 38 OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04 il 03

PAGE I OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 1 of 21

28



underthe terms of the agreements. Together, these transmission facilities are 8,183 lf in length

and represent apresent joint investment of $7,313,838. Sherwood and Wilsonville eachownll2

of the capacity of Segments 2 and 34. Sherwood owns 2/3 of the capacity of Segments 4 and

54, while Wilsonville owns the remaining ll3 capacity of each. The design capacity of each of
these segments of 48-inch diameter pipe is 40 mgd.

C. \ryHEREAS, Sherwood constructed and owns 18,000 lf of 48-inch diameter

transmission (Segments 6-9) from a point connecting to the Tooze Road Meter Vault described

herein and continuing to the Snyder Park Reservoir, which is also owned by the City of
Sherwood. The cost of the construction of these Sherwood transmission facilities, not including

the cost of the Snyder Park Reservoir, is estimated to be in excess of $ 1 1,630,000. Construction

of these transmission segments was estimated to occur in the spring of 2011 by Emery & Sons

Construction, Inc. ("Emery"), Sherwood's General Contractor; however, actual completion

occurred in December 2010. In order for Sherwood to accept these new transmission facilities,

they needed to be pressure tested and flushed, then maintained and regularly refreshed with

approximately 400 gpm of potable water. The source of this potable water is the WRWTP and

the Water Distribution System of the City of Wilsonville. A Temporary Water Supply

Agreement was negotiated between the Parties for the 400 gpm water supply to permit pressure

testing, flushing, and line maintenance. An agreement reflecting those negotiations was adopted

by the Parties on January ll,20ll.

D. WHEREAS, the Parties also jointly provided for the construction of the Tooze

Road Meter Vault facility and appurtenant 198-foot segment of 48-inch diameter transmission

line ("Segment 58"), collectively referred to as the Meter Vault Project. The Meter Vault

Project links Transmission Segments 5A and 6, provides metering and flow control facilities for

water flowing to Sherwood, and houses pressure reducing valves and transmission lines to serve

existing and planned distribution and reservoir systems in V/ilsonville. The Parties adopted the

Tooze Road Meter Vault Agreement authorizing the construction of these improvements on

January 1I,2011. Sherwood advanced its proportionate share of the Project, as well as advance

funding and construction of the extension of a 24-inch diameter distribution line (previously

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04 il 03

PAGE 2 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 2 of 21

29



referenced as a transmission line in the 2011 Agreement) that is wholly owned by Wilsonville.

These facilities are now operational.

E. WHEREAS, the unanticipated early completion of Segments 6-9 in
December 2010 and the later completion date of the Tooze Road Meter Vault left a short but

very important period when water needed to be supplied to Sherwood. The Parties provided this

temporary water supply through the advance construction by Sherwood of a 24-inch diameter

distribution line extension to Wilsonville's future distribution system. This distribution line

extension was a part of the Meter Vault Project, described in Recital D above, and is designed to

serve Wilsonville permanently with potable water through the Tooze Road Meter Vault, but in

the interim would be used to supply water from the Wilsonville distribution system to the vault

for transmission to Sherwood. All required real property had been acquired by Wilsonville for

the construction of the Tooze Road Meter Vault and this line extension and its connection to

Sherwood's Segment 6 transmission line. Sherwood proposed to construct these facilities by

means of a change order to its Segment 6 contract with Emery and to pay for the redesign

associated with advancing the 24-inch line extension, as well as to front the cost of the Project

subject to reimbursement by Wilsonville of its share through credits against future temporary and

interim water sales to Sherwood. The terms of this arrangement are contained in the Temporary

Water Supply Agreement between the Parties. This project is now completed. This temporary

water supply arrangement has now been operationally replaced by an Interim Water Supply

relationship described in Recital F below.

F. WHEREAS, the Parties previously executed an Interim Water Supply

Agreement, which provided for the temporary wheeling of up to 2.5 mgd of surplus water from

WRWTP potable water to Sherwood through the jointly-owned Sherwood and Wilsonville

transmission lines, and also partially through V/ilsonville existing distribution lines, until such

time as Segment 3 is completed and operational. The Parties commissioned Montgomery

Watson Harza,Inc. ("MVy'H") to perform a hydraulic capacity analysis of current WRV/TP and

Wilsonville facility capacity to ensure that 2.5 mgd of surplus water is available through the

Wilsonville distribution system in addition to Wilsonville's current and projected needs. MWH

completed the analysis on February 22, 2011, and concluded that the surplus capacity is

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH V/ATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04 t 103

PAGE 3 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 3 of 21

30



available. The Parties also contracted with Galardi Rothstein Group to develop and recommend

a methodology and estimated rate for water treatment and associated wheeling rates for

production and delivery of the interim water to Sherwood following completion of the Meter

Vault Project and continuing until Segment 3 of the 48-inch transmission line is operational.

That methodology and interim water rate have been adopted by the Parties.

G. WHEREAS, it is recognized and acknowledged by the Parties that the 48-inch

transmission linkage between the WRWTP and Sherwood will not be completed until the

remaining 2,400 lf of Segment 3 (hereinafter referenced as "segment 3B") is constructed by

Wilsonville. A map generally locating the 48-inch transmission line segments, including

Segment 38, is marked as Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Wilsonville previously constructed Segment 3A and the Parties desired to convey to Sherwood a

ll2 capacity interest therein as well as reimbursement to Wilsonville of ll2 of its costs incurred

in constructing Segment 34. The f,rrst phase of Segment 3B involves easement acquisition,

environmental permitting, and pipeline design. In addition, 'Wilsonville advanced certain costs

for preliminary work on Segment 38 through August 3I,2011, which needed to be repaid by

Sherwood. In order to accomplish these objectives, the Parties entered into an Intergovernmental

Agreement Between the Cities of Sherwood and Wilsonville Regarding Transmission

Segment 3A: Reimbursement for Work Completed and Ownership Thereof; and Regarding

Transmission Segment 3B: Payment by Sherwood to V/ilsonville for Work Previously

Accomplished, Easement Acquisition Costs, and Process, Environmental Permitting, Pipeline

Design Services, and Terms of Advance Sherwood Funding for Construction of Segment 38,

dated January 23,2012 (hereinafter, the "segment 3A Agreement"). The Parties acknowledge

that payments and deposits have been paid in accordance with said Segment 3A Agreement,

subject to any f,tnal cost true-up for Pacif,rc Habitat, Westech Engineering, Inc., Wilsonville

proj ect management, and property acquisition.

H. WHEREAS, the environmental permits for the construction of Segment 38 have

now been issued, DSL Permit No. 49456-RF, issued August 22,2012 and expiring August 22,

2013 unless renewed, and U.S. Army Corp of Engineers "Verification" Permit No. NWP-

2012-68, issued September 2I,2012 and expiring September2l,2014. The permits were issued

IGA BETV/EEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 38 OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04 t 103

PAGE 4 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 4 of 21

31



to Wilsonville, which provided copies to Sherwood. In addition, a professional services

agreement between Wilsonville and Westech Engineering, Inc., dated January 19, 2012, to

provide Segment 38 water transmission preliminary and final design has been completed

sufficient to establish the legal descriptions necessary to acquire property interests for the

construction of Segment 38. On December 3,2012, the Wilsonville City Council authorized the

acquisition of the property interests necessary to construct Segment 38. Wilsonville has

contracted for appraisal services, with appraisal reports scheduled for mid-February 2013 and

offers to property o\ilners by March 1,2013. If necessary, condemnation and right of entry

authorization will be sought. The Parties agree that Wilsonville will provide Sherwood copies of
the Westech agreement and legal descriptions for the property acquired for Segment 38.

I. WHEREAS, paragraph 13 of the Segment 3A Agreement described in Recital G

above provided a computation method of the Parties? share of Segment 3B costs. Paragraph l5

of the Segment 3A Agreement includes an overview of this Segment 3B Agreement and the

construction and financing process regarding Segment 38, establishes a baseline for negotiating

this Agreement and dealing with costs related to Segment 3B not otherwise covered, and

describes the terms for advancing funds for the construction and draw accounts and coordinated

periodic pay estimates by Sherwood and repayment by 'Wilsonville. Paragraph 13 also

references paragraphs 9-12, which respectively outline the cost-sharing for the environmental

permitting for Segment 38, the pipeline design contract for Segment 38, repayment of costs

advanced by Wilsonville, and easement acquisition. It is the intent of the Parties to follow these

provisions in the Segment 3A Agreement in this Agreement unless otherwise specifically set

forth herein. For ease of reference, paragraphs 9-15 of the Segment 3A Agreement are marked

as Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

J. WHEREAS, the Parties have the authority to enter into this Agreement pursuant

to their applicable charters, principal acts, and ORS 190.003 - 190.030.

NOV/, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference and made a

part of this Agreement.

IGA BETV/EEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04t t03

PAGE 5 OF I6

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 5 of 21

32



2. Consideration. In consideration of the terms and conditions set forth below. the

Parties enter into this Agreement.

3. Term. This Agreement becomes effective on the date of execution by the last

signatory party and shall be perpetual unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing.

4. Construction of Segment 38.

4.1 Sfficient Funds. It is understood and agreed that each party will budget

sufficient funds to perform their respective duties and obligations as contracted for

herein.

4.2 Wilsonville Responsibilities. Subject to active involvement and

coordination with Sherwood, Wilsonville shall oversee the property easement acquisition,

surveying, geotechnical/environmental studies, permitting, design, and construction,

including inspection/project management, maintenance, and operation of the Segment 3B

project. Both Wilsonville and Sherwood shall be joint owners of the Segment 38

construction project, unless Sherwood lawfully transfers its ownership in the project to

the Willamette River Water Coalition (WRWC). Upon such transfer, the project shall be

jointly owned by Wilsonville and the WRWC, but V/ilsonville's responsibilities shall not

change unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties. No other parfy shall have

interest therein unless mutually agreed to by the Parties.

4.3 Cost of the Project.

4.3.1 The Parties provided the cost and cost-sharing methodologies for

permitting, engineering design, and easement acquisition for the Segment 3B

Project in the Segment 3A Agreement, with the salient paragraphs 9-15 attached

as Exhibit B for ease of reference. To the extent services for construction

engineering, including but not limited to arborist services, and third-party

inspection services were not specifically addressed in the Segment 3A

Agreement, the Parties agree that these services shall be subject to the same cost-

sharing methodology.

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04l t03

PAGE 6 OF I6

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 6 of 21

33



4.3.2 The estimated total construction cost for the Segment 3B Project is

$3,497,000.00. Based on this estimate and recognizing that pressure reducing

valve facilities at Boeckman Road are being constructed solely for the benefit of
Wilsonville, Sherwood shall be responsible for 46.2Yo of the cost of Segment 38

and Wilsonville shall be responsible for 53.8% of the cost to construct

Segment 38. The cost-sharing methodology and methodology for final true-up of
project costs and percentages is set forth in the Segment 3A Agreement and

recited as set forth in Exhibit B incorporated herein.

4.4 Deposit and Draw Structure.

4.4.1 Funds Budeet. Sherwood represents and warrants that it has

sufficient funds to advance the total construction cost of the Segment 3B Project,

subject to repayment by Wilsonville of its share of the costs as set forth in

Section 4.3.2 above.

4.4.2 Deposit of Construction Funds. After V/ilsonville identifies the

lowest responsible bidder as the contractor for the Segment 3B Project but before

the Wilsonville City Council approves a construction contract, Sherwood will

deposit with Wilsonville (l) a sum equal to the sum of the bid of the lowest

responsible bidder plus 5% for construction cost contingency, and (2) a sum for

construction engineering and third-party inspection services equal to the awarded

contract for such services, subject to approval by the Sherwood City Council.

The funds shall be placed in a separate account and any interest earned by the

funds shall accrue to Sherwood. The funds shall be used to compensate the

selected contractor(s) and to reimburse Wilsonville for costs attributable to

construction of the Segment 3B Project consistent with the terms of the Segment

3A Agreement and the percentages described in Section 4.3.2 above.

4.4.3 Deposit for Pre-Purchase of Pipes. In the event V/ilsonville

purchases water transmission pipes for Segment 3B in advance of approving the

construction contract, Sherwood shall deposit with Wilsonville an amount

IGA BETV/EEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04r 103

PAGE 7 OF I6

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 7 of 21

34



sufficient to cover the cost of the pipes. The amount shall be based on a written

estimate of the cost, and Wilsonville shall provide Sherwood with copies of the

hnal invoice(s) that show the actual purchase cost(s). Any amount deposited with

Wilsonville under this section shall be included in the payment obligation

described in Section 4.4.2 above.

4.4.4 Contractor Draw Requests. Wilsonville shall cause the contractor

to submit the contractor's draw request with at least one original to the designated

party for Wilsonville, and Wilsonville shall promptly forward a copy to

Sherwood's designatedparty. Each city will notify the other within hve days of
receipt of any concerns or objections. Thereafter, Wilsonville, in consultation

with Sherwood, shall take the appropriate action, as may be determined by the

Parties and/or the applicable circumstances, to pay the billing, in whole or in part,

under reservation, or not at all.

4.5 Construction Responsibilities and Financial Reports. Wilsonville shall be

responsible for the control and supervision of all activities of construction of the

Segment 3B Project. Wilsonville shall prepare and submit to Sherwood financial activity

reports of the Segment 3B Project upon request but not more than once per month.

Wilsonville shall prepare such other reports and information as the Parties may require

and mutually agree upon.

4.6 Plan Review, Change Orders, and Site Access. Wilsonville shall provide

Sherwood with copies of the 75-percent and 9O-percent engineering design submittals

and of all hnal project plans and allow Sherwood to comment on the plans. Contractor

change orders must be approved by both Wilsonville and Sherwood. Sherwood shall be

allowed access to the construction site during regular business hours to monitor

construction activities, provided such access does not unreasonably interfere with

construction.

IGA BETV/EEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 38 OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04t I 03

PAGE 8 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 8 of 21

35



4.7 Financial "True-Up" and Repayment by Wilsonville.

4.7.1 "True-ljp." Within 90 days of the date the 'Wilsonville City Engineer

determines the project is substantially complete, Wilsonville shall provide Sherwood with

a financial accounting of the project that shows the actual total construction cost,

construction engineering, arborists, and third-party inspection services, together with the

agreed upon percentage for Wilsonville's project management and administration. To the

extent the deposit described in Section 4.4.2 above exceeds the actual costs identified

herein, such excess amount shall be refunded to Sherwood, including any interest

thereon. Sherwood shall notift Wilsonville within 10 days whether Sherwood has any

concems or objections regarding the accounting.

4.7.2 Repavment by Wilsonville. Within 180 days of the date of substantial

completion described in Section 4.7.I above, subject to Section 4.9, Wilsonville shall pay

to Sherwood an amount equal to Wilsonville's trued-up percentage of the actual total

costs for the Segment 38 Project.

4.8 Construction Engineering and Inspection Services. Wilsonville shall

retain an independent contractor to conduct construction engineering, including but not

limited to arborist services, and construction inspection of all project elements.

Wilsonville may elect to extend the existing contract with Westech to provide these

services or solicit or select an alternative contractor. In either case, Wilsonville shall

make available for Sherwood to review all inspections reports and, upon Sherwood's

request, provide Sherwood with copies of the reports.

4.9 Mitigation Funding. Following the date of substantial completion, the

Parties agree to establish a mitigation fund in the amount of $100,000.00 for the purpose

of funding environmental mitigation, monitoring, and maintenance, as required by the

Oregon Division of State Lands and the United States Army Corp of Engineers, including

but not limited to landscaping and wetland mitigation. From the amounts reimbursable to

Sherwood under Section 4.7 above, Wilsonville shall retain an amount equal to

Sherwood's percentage obligation of $100,000.00 calculated according to the cost-

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
404 I 103

PAGE 9 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 9 of 21

36



sharing methodology set forth in the Segment 3A Agreement. Wilsonville shall retain

these funds for a period of up to two years following the date of substantial completion.

The funds shall be deposited in a separate account and used only for the purpose of
mitigation, monitoring, and maintenance related to the Segment 3B Project. At the end

of the retention period, Wilsonville shall retum Sherwood's percentage portion of any

unused funds, including interest thereon, to Sherwood. During the retention period,

Wilsonville shall provide a financial accounting of the funds to Sherwood upon request

but not more than quarterly.

5. Ownership, Maintenance, and Operation of the Segment 3B Project.

5.1 Ownership. The Segment 38 Project is intended to have a final design

capacity of 40 million gallons per day (mgd). Sherwood shall be entitled to a 50Yo

capacity share thereof, and V/ilsonville the remaining 50Yo capacity share. Sherwood

shall have an undivided 50%o ownership share, and Wilsonville shall have the remaining

undivided 50olo ownership share, of Segment 38, both as tenants in common. Ownership

means the right of each party to use for its own benefit its portion of transmission line

capacity. In the event that final design capacity or actual operating capacity exceeds

40 mgd, the supplemental capacity shall be owned by the Parties in proportion to the

above-referenced capacity shares. The respective capacity use of the Parties will be

determined by appropriate metering. The operational characteristics and operational

metering protocol have been agreed to by the Parties.

5.2 Easements. Wilsonville agrees to execute and deliver to Sherwood a non-

exclusive, permanent easement to maintain and operate Segment 3B for the purposes

intended by this Agreement, notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement or the

withdrawal of either party from this Agreement, for so long as Sherwood shall use

Segment 3B for its intended purposes and if Wilsonville fails to fulfill its operation and

maintenance responsibilities.

5.3 Operation and Maintenance Responsibilities. Unless otherwise agreed to

by the Parties in writing, V/ilsonville shall have the responsibility for operation and

IGA BETV/EEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04t I 03

PAGE 10 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 10 of 21

37



maintenance of Segment 38. The actual, direct, out-of-pocket expenses of post-

construction operation and maintenance of Segment 3B (together with any allowance as

the Parties may agree upon for general or administrative expenses) shall be billed to the

Parties monthly in proportion to their ownership interests reflected in Section 5.1,

exclusive of the pressure reducing valve facilities which are owned by Wilsonville and

are Wilsonville's sole responsibility to maintain. Wilsonville shall exercise due diligence

in effecting its operation and maintenance responsibilities under this Agreement. For any

non-emergency maintenance project or event in excess of $50,000 in total, individual

costs require coordination with and the consent of Sherwood. Subject to shut-down

emergencies, announced scheduled repairs, or precautionary shut-down to allow

upstream spills in the Willamette River to flow past the WRWTP, Wilsonville shall

operate the water system in a manner to not harm Sherwood and to provide Sherwood's

ownership capacity share, in keeping with the prior daily notification by Sherwood to

Wilsonville of capacity needs or such notification schedule as the Parties otherwise may

agree, at an adequate hydraulic grade at the point of delivery to Sherwood. The point of

delivery is defined as the revenue meter located in the meter vault approximately 400 feet

west of the intersection of SW Grahams Ferry Road and Tooze Road. Unless otherwise

agreed to by the Parties, the hydraulic grade line at the point of delivery to Sherwood

shall be a minimum of 392 feet, sufficient to completely fill Sherwood's terminal Sunset

Reservoirs, which have an overflow elevation of approximately 380 feet. Should

temporary conditions exist beyond the operational control of Wilsonville of the WRWTP,

that materially affect the abilþ of the WRWTP to produce sufficient water to meet the

demands of both cities, the available supply capacity of the WRWTP shall be split in

accordance with the respective ownership rights in capacity at the WRWTP. The

aforementioned is not intended to alter the respective ownership of capacity in the

pipeline. Neither city shall be responsible to meet the water demands of the other.

5.4 Non-Emergency Major Repair or Replacement. Wilsonville shall monitor

the overall condition of the transmission line and facilities and shall schedule any non-

emergency major repair or replacement three years in advance of such major repair or

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 38 OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
404 ll 03

PAGE 1I OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 11 of 21

38



replacement. At the same time, Wilsonville shall prepare an estimated projected annual

expenditure report for the cost of the scheduled repair or replacement. Upon preparation

of the schedule and annual costs report, Wilsonville shall provide Sherwood a copy of

same.

6. Transmission of Water to Third Parties. Unless both Parties otherwise

previously agree in writing, neither party shall permit use of the Segment 38 Project for the

purpose of transmitting water to any person or party other than Wilsonville or Sherwood retail

customers, save and except for a transfer by Sherwood of its ownership interest in the

Segment 3B Project to the WRWC pursuant to Section 4.2 above. Subject to Sections 8 and 9

below, or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing, transmission of water by a party shall

not exceed that party's ownership share in the Willamette River Water Treatment Plant. Any

revenues derived from transmission of water through the Segment 38 Project on behalf of
entities other than Wilsonville or Sherwood customers shall be paid to the Parties in proportion

to their ownership interest in capacity used by a third party in the Segment 3B Project, as

reflected in Section 5.1.

7. Approvals. Unless otherwise directed by the respective City Councils, all

approvals of either V/ilsonville or Sherwood in this Agreement shall be made by the City

Manager or the City Manager's authorized designee.

8. Leasing of Supply Capacity. Each party shall have the right to lease from the

other party such unused capacity of its capacity share of the Segment 3B Project as the party

with the unused capacity may determine to be reasonably available and prudent to be leased to

the other party. The compensation to the leasing party shall be fairly and equitably agreed upon

by the Parties.

9. Overuse of Supply Facilify. Wilsonville and Sherwood shall each use the

Segment 3B Project facilities in a manner consistent with prudent water utility practices and to

minimize, insofar as is practicable, interference with each other's use of its respective share of
capacity to meet its demand. Unless caused by system operation conditions not caused by the

overusing party, any overuse of 10 percent or greater by either Wilsonville or Sherwood for two

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 38 OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04l t03

PAGE 12 OF I6

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 12 of 21

39



consecutive years or for three out of five consecutive years, shall result in the overusing party

compensating the other party at a lease rute that will be fairly and equitably agreed upon by the

Parties.

10. Dispute/Attorney Fees. If a dispute arises between the Parties regarding breach

of this Agreement or interpretation of any term of this Agreement, the Parties shall first attempt

to resolve the dispute by negotiation, followed by mediation and arbitration.

Step One: The respective City Managers of the Parties or their designees are designated

to negotiate on behalf of the Party each represents. If the dispute is resolved at this Step One,

there shall be a written determination of such resolution, signed by each Party's Manager and

ratified by each governing body, if required by the governing body, which shall be binding upon

the Parties. Step One will be deemed complete when a Party delivers notice in writing to the

other Parties that the Party desires to proceed to Step Two.

Step Two: If the dispute cannot be resolved within 10 days after Step One, or earlier

after written notice given by aparty, the Parties shall submit the matter to non-binding mediation

by a professional engineer with demonstrated substantial experience in the design, construction,

and operation of complex municipal treatment, transmission, distribution, and storage systems.

The Parties shall attempt to agree on a mediator. If they cannot agree, the Parties shall request a

list of five mediators from an entity or f,rrm experienced in providing engineering mediation

services who do not have an existing professional relationship with either Party. The Parties will
mutually agree upon a mediator from the list provided. Any common costs of mediation shall be

bome equally by the Parties who shall each bear their own costs and fees. If the issue(s) is

resolved at this Step Two, a written determination of such resolution shall be signed by each

Manager and approved by their respective governing bodies, if necessary.

Step Three: If mediation does not resolve the issue within 45 days of submission of the

issue to mediation, the matter will be referred to binding arbitration by a panel of three

arbitrators who are professional engineers with demonstrated substantial experience in the

design, construction, and operation of complex municipal treatment, transmission, distribution,

and storage systems. One arbitrator will be chosen by each Party and those two arbitrators

IGA BETIWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04l 103

PAGE 13 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 13 of 21

40



chosen will choose a third arbitrator. No panel member may have an on-going professional

relationship to either Party. The arbitration panel will reasonably endeavor to reach a decision

on the dispute within 60 days of its submission to the panel. The decision shall be binding on

both Parties and there shall be no right of funher appeal. The prevailing Party shall be entitled to

its reasonable attorney fees as shall be awarded by the arbitration panel.

11. Breach. If a Party defaults under the terms of this Agreement, then upon 20 days

written notice, the defaulting Party shall undertake steps to commence cure of the breach within

a reasonable time, depending on the circumstances. In the event there is a dispute over the

amount to be paid, the undisputed amount shall be paid immediately and the Agreement shall not

be in default while the solution to the disputed payment portion is resolved under Section 7. The

Parties understand and agree that water service is critical to each Party's customers and that

monetary damages may be an insufficient remedy considering the infrastructure involved.

Therefore, the Parties expressly agree that equitable remedies such as injunction or specific

performance are specifically contemplated and allowed by this Agreement.

12. Notices. Notices regarding operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, breach,

termination, renewal or other issues shall be deemed sufficient if deposited in the United States

Mail, First Class, postage prepaid, addressed to the Parties as follows:

City Manager
City of Sherwood
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood OR 97140

City Manager
City of Wilsonville
29799 SW Town Center Loop E
Wilsonville OR 97070

13. Insurance and Indemnity. To the full extent permitted by law, each Party

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other, its counsel, officers, employees, and agents

from any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, or other harm caused by the sole negligence

or intentional acts of that Pu.ty, including any attorney fees or other costs of defense. Further,

independent of the indemnity obligation, and as may be allowed under law, each Party agrees to

maintain general liability insurance in an amount not less than Oregon Tort Claim limits

applicable to public agencies as set forth in ORS 30.260 - 30.300.

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04t t03

PAGE 14OF I6

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 14 of 21

41



14. Succession. This Agreement shall be binding upon any successors to the

respective Parties, which through merger, consolidation or other means, including a lawful

transfer by Sherwood to the Willamette River Water Coalition ("WRWC"), succeeds to the water

supply treatment and distribution and transmission functions of that Party. No transfer to a

private, nonpublic entity is permissible without the consent of both Parties.

15. Amendment. The terms of this Agreement may be amended or supplemented by

mutual agreement of the Parties. Any amendment or supplement shall be in writing, shall refer

specifically to this Agreement, and shall be executed by the Parties.

16. Good Faith and Cooperation. The Parties agree and represent to each other

good faith, complete cooperation, and due diligence in the performance in all obligations of the

Parties pursuant to this Agreement.

l7 . Governing Law. This Agreement is govemed by the laws of the State of Oregon.

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in two counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same

agreement.

19. Instruments of Further Assurance. From time to time, at the request of either

Party, each Party shall, without further consideration, execute and deliver such further

instruments and shall take such fuither action as may be reasonably required to fully effectuate

the purposes of this Agreement.

20. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this

Agreement shall be judicially deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the

validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not in any

way be affected or impaired thereby.

(s i gnatur e s o n fo ll ow ing p age)

IGA BETWEEN SHERWOOD AND WILSONVILLE REGARDING
SEGMENT 3B OF 48-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION LINE
A04l t03

PAGE 15 OF 16

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 15 of 21

42



CITY OF SIIERWOOD
an Oregon municipal corporation

CITY OF \ryILSONTVILLE
an Oregon municipal corporation

Approved as to Form:

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 16 of 21

43



v t_t8tHXf
I

ìllv\
ãrl-=lÑv' -¡=n'ú

l r _=-

tf
L

i)og I

' - -1

-ì-j

t,

lir-.,-l :-.. ;r i

- -t

_ -'i_.t-
.L

I
I

I

Itn

---l
'1 I

L(
t-
I

'-

:
:

I

I .)-t---
Í-

I

,l:,.J
d . ¡; l.- l/

lirt ' rl
r-ti -

t/

rl

I
I
I
I

I

r
t.*

tt :t i

l

I

I

I

I
I
I
(-_

t)
I

J
ú ¡

or

I \
I

i!o-
I o,o

a
)

I

t

I

t-- t.
?9SlN

I
,l
I

l i(lr
\'ir(\

\
o
'n
1

, \__

\

1

I

-_l

oo.
,ìI

-o7z

1N3
I

I

It_ _.1_ _Ì
'f

' 
ri,

t-Ì

'/¡"-
I

I

I

ll t I tt
ll
t( r

ll
\t
ì
I

ì
I

I

\

- -rl

/t

\l

,tlf-rs

{

l--.-

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 17 of 21

44



shale ($204,960) to Wil.sonvillc

6, Conveyance of U2 Capacity and Orvnership Share of Segment fro¡n

Wilsonville t<l Sherrvood. Contcnrporancous with piryrnent by Sherwoocl to Wil ville ol'its

pttrchase of l12 the capacitl, of Scgn-rcnt 3A a.s dcscribccl above, Wilsorlvjlle rvcys I 12 the

capat:itv and orvncrslr.ip tlreleof lo Shcruroorl. 'lhc P¿rrtics agrce tllat Se -J¡\ has a desigu

in capacity slrarllcapacity ol 40 rtrgd, and that if it has a gtcator ollcl'ltional capacir5', any

be shared ec¡uaÌly hy the Plrties. Sulrject to pclnrittilrg:qr¡rroved hy ancl tèderal legulations,

Segment 3¡\ will Lrc sctthe terrns of other use rights and lespon.sitlilities ol'Scgrnent 3 r

f'orth in the .subsequent Agleernent belween thc pirrlies le to the construction of Segnient

38. In the interim, use rights and responsibjlitie.s shall

'fi.an,smission Li¡re AgrcerrrcnL entu¡cd into bctrvcerr

set lbrtlr in the Segment 2 Water

on Augu,st 7,?007.

7. Segnteltt 3r\ Iiasc¡ncnt. Wi lc agrces, subject lcl Sìlel',uvoocl '.s compliance

wíth the telms oI Section ó above, t<l ex and cleliver t() Sherwocld r.l perntanenf easentenl to

ìay. repìace, rnaintair, ancl use the Sc nt 3A 'l'r'ansnrission [,ine lor the ¡rurposes intendecl hy

this Agreement. The ¡:urpose ntent clf tlre rights lrnder such ezrsenlent is to safègnard

Shcrwood and to tre Lrsed o \ùy'ilsorlvillc lails or ncglccts its opelation and ¡naintcn¿ìncc

lesponsibi lities uncler beloiv

8. Oper and l\,Iainten¿ìncr¡ lìesponsibiljties ol'Segment 3,{. Scgrnent -3A

will operate as a ol'Scgurent 3 which ¿rlso shull iucludc Segnrcnt 3B whicli is anticipatcd to

be. constrLìcìted atc 20 l-3 Sutrjecr to pernriiline approved by statc and lecleral regulations. tlre

tcrms of al and rnainten¿uce responsibilities of Segrrrent 3 including Segment 3Â will

lrc sct in the subset¡ueut Agreernent bctween the partìes concerning tìre constructioll and

o of Segrnent 38, ln thc interim- operation and maintenance responsibilitie.s shalì Lre a.s

in paraglaplrs 2.4 ancl 2.4. 1 (rl tlls Scgrrrcnt 2 Watcr Transrlis.sit¡n Lilte Agt'cetttcnt

9. H,nvironnrent¿rl Pcr¡rrittirrg for Segnrenl 3Il. Wilsonville ha.s executed a

contrilct with Pacifìc Ilabitat Scl'r,ices (PIIS) to pr'ùparc ztnd prcryide to 1v\/ilsonv.i)le appropliatc

environrnent¿rl clocument¿rtion to sr.rpport a Joint Perrnil Ap¡ll iclrtion lor the Sc.gnrenf 3lì

I'agt: t' ol |ì

EXHIBIT B

lC.\ Shcrrv,r¡;rl .Sc{r¡crt lìr\

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 18 of 21

45



Transmission line. A copy of thc scope ol rvork of the executcd contrâcf is attached hereto as

Exhibit C and incor¡lorartcrl hcrcill b-\,¡'efcrencc. The contr¿rct anlount i.s $25,68.l. Wirhin 30

clays of executir¡ri of this Asreenreut hy the P¿utics, Sllelrvclr¡cì shall rc'¡rrit to Wilscr¡lvillc 4ó. l8%

of that ûmorìr1t (S11.859.49). In the cvertt that fìnnl costs di[fer fr'onl the contract maximum

amount, rhe Parties shall .share proportionally any such ovelage or uncìerage responsihiliry.

10. Pipelint' Design C-'ontract fr-rr Segnrcnt 38. Thc Pllr(ics have treen negotiaring

g'ith WEI to providc Wilsonvillc u,ith cngirrccling sclviccs to provìdc a Scgmcnt 38 Watcr

'frarrsmission Pipeline De.sign. The Scopc ol'Services is attached trer-etr¡ as F.xhihit D and is

incorporated herein by ref'crcncc. Thc Final Ploposccl contract arÌlount is.$114,530. Within 30

days of execLt[ion o[ Lhis Agrcerrrcnt hy thc Pal'tics Sher'\,oocl will renrit 46.18% ol'the contract

¿rmount (,S99.070) to Wilsonvillc. If' therc is a contract p¿ryrìlent dif'ference, then ät the tinle of'

contract LrL¡e up. [hc P¿r¡1ics sllall sharc proportiorrally any srrch overage ot'r-tttdcrage

responsi bility.

ll. Repayment ol'segrnent -llì Cost.s Advanced bt, lVilsonville. Wilsonville has

previously paid $73.931 lor auÍhorizecl Segrneut JB costs. Thel,arc strnrrnarized in Exhibit tr.

Within 30 day.s of the executiorì of this Agreenrent..Sherrvoocl will rcntit to Wilsonville 46.l8or/o

of this ¿ìrnorìr1t (S34,l4 L34).

12. Ea.senrent Acquisition. Wilsonvillc estimntcs that propcr-ty acquisition costs tc)

purchase needed eâsetnenls lionl l\vo l)r'operly owncrs (B[Lrer and Inlancl) rvill tölal

approxirnarely 5280,000, cxclusivc oI any wctland mitigaticu or u,etland park property that nlay

need to be acc¡uirecl. l'hey also estilletc tlrat appruisi.rls. legal descriptions. negotiatiDns u,ith

property owners, ancl legal work associatcd with easernenL purclrases will tot¿rl another $3-5.000.

Based on currelìt calcul¿rtions, Shcl'wood sllall be responsitrle l'or 46.189o and Wilsonville lor

53.82Vc of'tlre experìses âctuallv incnrred. Within 30 days of exectltir:tl ol'this Agreement. eacìr

Party trll pay into zr sinking fund Sl7,-500 lo covûr'tlte ti:regr-ring costs itrctrrred. Any ovcrrttns

in these costs \vill be prorn¡:rtlv satisl'ied b¡,tlrc palties on an c'c¡ttal basis. f"he Parties anticipate

thar perlnitting u,ill lìavc to ltc lar-rcly in placc. irrcluding iclentil'ic¡rtion ol'att1, r'ec¡uired Property

Irritigalion, beftrrc tblntal pt'opettV acquisition nia-v be concludcd. At strch tinte as these elelllent-s

are ìn place ancl there is tent¿rtive agrecnrrìut rvith orre ot both propel'ty ourners, Sherwood will

pay 46.189c and Wilsc¡nvillc 53.82q('ol the agreccl trpon acqltisiti<tti co.sls into a sinking fund'

P.:gc 7 of l2

EXHIBIT B

16A Slrcrrvood Scgrrrcnt -3r\

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 19 of 21

46



l3ased upon currerìt infr¡rmation, there appùíìrs ro hc a need lìlr a -10 li wide ¡rermanent utility

easemellt. Initially, it rvas contenrplated that the l(ínsnran Road stteet right of wa¡, would also

overlap this casernent. Present dircction fi'olu I'cviewing govcrnnrcntal agencies appears to thvor

a stand alone rvatcr line easenrent, [n thc evcnt that this reguldtory djrection changcs, the Parties

wili revieu'on the basis of eqì.¡ity and lainress slraring of accluisition cc)sts betrveen the urater line

easerïcnt and the o(hcl acquiring usc.

13. Cornputalion Metht¡d of thc Paltius' Share of Segmcnt 3Il Costs. As

evidenced in Sections 9, 10, ll, and l2 ¿bove, Sherwood has a calcr-¡lated 46,187¿ and

Wilsonvillc a c¿ilculatetl 53.82c/o responsrbility lbr Segrnent 3B Total Prcr.jecl. Costs. 'l-hese

percentages are derived from current estinlates of constmction costs of the Segnrent 38 Project,

excluding mobilizatiou rvliìch is sulrject fo the pelcr:'ntages ancl acldcd back in. The diffþrence in

responsibi.lity lor payment relates to the fact th¿rt ccrtain ¡rrojcct elenlents (the pressure reclucing

valve fãcrlities) have no bcnclit to Sherrvoocl. Suhscqucntl-1,, thc fiual pcrccntagc.s rvill be

lellective of'the actual constnìcticln costs. all[l if those ccrsts have the ellèct of alrering the

proportional allocation of responsibiliry for othcl projcct costs as listcd in ¡rlragraphs 9, 10. II,
and 12, tlle pcrcentage allocations w'ill lre appropt'iatell,revi*ed. Finall-v, al tlte Lin'tc'ol'Project

conrpletion lnd tnre up. this all¡rcation rvill again be revieu,ecl and e'ltr"rnged if necessary. The

lelnr Total Project Cost shalì hlrve the mearning as dellnecl in Section 2.4 al'the Agrecnrents lìrr

Segnrents 4 and -54, u,hich state-s:

2.4 Cost ol'Project. The clirect cosl of thc prclpertv eilselnent
acq Lrisi tion, su rvcyin g, geote cltn icitl/env irorl rllental s tudies,
penuitting, design. ancì con.slruction incÌudìng inspection/proiect
management, <lrvnership, rrainlenance, o\\¡net'ship, maintellancc,
ancl operation of' ... Ithe] Ploject.

14, Responsibilities ol' tbe Parties. Wilsclnville rviÌl be responsible tbr all

contrac[ing ol'obìigatir:us ¿1.ì(l sctvices rci¡uircLl Lry this ICjA sutrject to over'.sight and active

involt,elnenl ¡rncì coolclinarion ol Sherr*ot:d in aì I ilspects of the Pro¡ecÌ. '['he Slterrt,ood Pr-rblic

Wr¡rks Dirccl.t.rl rvill llc conüun'crìtly crr¡,riecl on all correspondcttce ¿rnd clocunrents, including

emails regaldìng the Pro.ject exceptinq otherwise privileged Wilsonville cotrrrrttnications

Pagc H of 12

EXHIBIT B

l(;i\ SlìL:r!vr\)(l Scsntcnt lÀ

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 20 of 21

47



15. ()vervicrv of Scconcl Segnrent 3.Il IGA ¿rllrl the (lon.struction and !'inancing

Process Regarding Segnrcnt 3Iì, 'fhe Parties u,rll sLrbscc¡Lrenrlv negotjarc ¿r secolrd IGA dcaling

witlr the costs relatctl lcrScgntenl" 3lJ not othenvisc'coverecl in this Agrcelucnt. Ir is antici¡ratecl

that Sherrvood rvrll aclvattce filncl.s for [he constlr-rction ¡llrase trasetJ u¡run subseqLrenll),negotiated

tËr'ms, including cstabli.shr¡lc'nt ol'initial clcpt-rsit drau,accounts and establishnrenr rllcoorclinared

pcli<ldic pay estinrntes. Wilsonvlìlc u,ill rcpay Sllerw,ood tol cos(s ndvunced on its behall hv

Sherwoocl rttr l¿rter th¿tn 180 days after completion of the ,Segnrerrt 3B Pnr.jcct. 'ft'¡ tllc extenl tha(

ruronies are av¿ilable to Wilst¡nr,ìlle to lepay alì clr a portiou <¡f the lirnds ¿rclvanced in its behaìf

prior to 180 days. Wilsonville rvill excrci.se its best cllbrts to do so. Wilsonville Project

crverhead '-vilì bc Iímitccl Io l4c/c ol'Totai Project (losts lrncl Shel'r,vclocJ rvill accept rh¿rt amount. as

ar appropriatc \l'ilsonvillc overhead charge rvithout thc necd fbr furthcr ìtcrrrization by

Wilsonviìlc.

of'this Agrcenrerlt ol intcrprctation ol'anv tcrr.ìr r-''f this r\grccrncnt. the Plrltìcs sh attcnlpt

ro resolvc the dispute by negotiaticln. f'ollc.,wecl by nrediation altd ¿Lrl'rilt'ario

Stc-n C)ne: The respecti ve (ìity ì\'lanagers ol'rhc P¿Lrties dcsi,qnees re designated

to negotilte on be hall' of thc Part1, g..¡l represents. ll' tlte is resolved at this Step One,

lhele shall bc a writlelt detenlinatir.rn of such rcsolul signctJ by eaclr Patty's N{anager iurd

ratif ied b,v each grrvernin-u body, i{ rec¡uirecl b.v inq bocly, u,hich shalI be btnclin-u upon

tlrc Partics .t¡gÌ[) onc] will Lre deerlred ccr rvhen ir Party clelivers notice ill rç,ritinq to the

other Partics tlìat the Partv cle-sircs to d to Step'l"rvo

Step 'I'rvo: If the dìspu be resolved rvitiri¡ l0 clays ¿lt Stcp One, or eal'lÍer_aftei'

',vritte n noticrJ giverr by a tlrc Partics shall sLrhrnit the matter to norl-binding nrediation by a

prolèssional ongìneet' w denrônstI¿ìlccI subslilutial cx¡lcr icncc in t he design, corrstn¡c(ion and

opùrati0r.r ol' cornplc Lill tCl pal tlcirlrncnl, tl'ansnrission, clistl'iLrution. ¿rnd stolâ-r{e s-vstents. The

P¿rrtie.s shall a tû ugt'ee on a mediltol'. Il'they c¿u'ìt'ìot iìgree. rhe Parties shaìl requcst ¿t list

t¡f fivc r¡eci lì'orl an entity ttr firrrr expc-r'ieltcccl i¡r proviclirt-t crr-{irtccrrn-t lrredì:ttion ser\'ìces

who do liave ¿rn cxistirrg prurfcssirlral rclationslri¡l u'itlr ci¡lrel P;utv. Thc Palties will

l'n Lt y ag|ee upol] zl r¡rccliatol' l'loll the Iist proviclecl. Any corrnlon costs oF tlrecli¿tticrn shall be

P:rg<'9 trl 12

EXHIBIT B

lC'A -Slrcrq or,rl Scg¡rìtnl .ì^

Resolution 2013-011, Exhibit A 
March 5, 2013, Page 21 of 21

48


	City Council Packet Cover 03.05.13
	City Council Agenda 03.05.13
	02.09.13 City Council Minutes-Goal Setting
	02.19.13 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	Resolution 2013-009 Authorize City Mgr to Sign Police Vehicle Lease Agr-STAFF REPORT 03.05.13
	Resolution 2013-009 Authorize City Mgr to Sign Police Vehicle Lease Agr-DRAFT 03.05.13
	Resolution 2013-010 Establish Cedar Creek Trail Local Adv Comm-STAFF REPORT 03.05.13
	Resolution 2013-010 Establish Cedar Creek Trail Local Adv Comm-DRAFT 03.05.13
	Resolution 2013-011 Segment 3B Waterline Construction IGA-STAFF REPORT 03.05.13
	Resolution 2013-011 Segment 3B Waterline Construction IGA-DRAFT 03.05.13
	Resolution 2013-011 Segment 3B Waterline Construction IGA-EXH A 03.05.13



